
 
 

SCRUTINY : REGENERATION AND 
PUBLIC PROTECTION MEETING 

 
2.30 pm TUESDAY, 3RD MARCH, 2020 

 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.00 pm.   
This meeting is for Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 

the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.   

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

 

3. Town Centre Masterplan   

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

5 - 10 

4. Continued Development of the Town Centre - 
Evening Economy  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

11 - 16 

5. Corporate Self-Evaluation - Question 3 
(Leadership & Management)  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

17 - 36 

6. Work Programme 2019-20   

 To consider the attached report 
 

37 - 48 

7. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow Up 
Actions  

 

8. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 



9. Any Other Business deemed urgent by the Chair   
 

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors:  J Amos (Chair) 

                     G Lewis (Vice-Chair) 
  
 Councillors: M Colbran, L Davies, K Gibbs and 

S Thomas 
 
Co-optee(s): H Hopkins, H Jackson, H Powell and 
M Ellis 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Town Centre Masterplan  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on progress made in relation to the development of a 

third iteration of a Town Centre Masterplan.  
 

1.2 This report aims to make Scrutiny Members aware of the progress made into the 
development of a new Placemaking Plan and Delivery Plan that will inform future 
project development and delivery within the Town Centre.  

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1  The content of this report to be discussed and noted. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1  The Masterplan document was commissioned by Merthyr Tydfil CBC, Welsh 

Government and Transport for Wales. It provides a Placemaking Plan for Merthyr 
Tydfil that is based on a shared ambition for the town and its role within the Capital 
City Region.  

 
3.2  The Placemaking Plan is one of three documents that will be developed for Merthyr 

Tydfil CBC providing an integrated framework for the strategic redevelopment of 
Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre.  The suite of documents that will be presented once 
finalised includes: 

 

Date Written 28th January 2020 

Report Author Zoe Thomas / Chris Long   

Service Area Community Regeneration  

Committee Date 3rd March 2020  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



- Placemaking Plan – A strategic document detailing the future vision of the Town 
with high level interpretation of areas of opportunities accompanied by a Baseline 
Review; 

- Supporting Evidence – This will include a WelTAG Review (Welsh Transport 
Appraisal Guidance), Commercial Advice and an Economic Impact Assessment all of 
which have been commissioned to support the creation of the Placemaking Plan; 
and 

- Delivery and Implementation Plan – A document outlining the recommended 
interventions required to support delivery (confidential to the client team).  This will 
be an evolving document in which projects can be added to / removed (as 
appropriate).  

 
3.3  The Placemaking Plan was informed by the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 

(LDP) 2006-2021 and will continue to be informed by the newly adopted LDP 2016 – 
2031 drawing on the vision, strategies and key intervention areas to create a series 
of projects and specific interventions that inform a blueprint towards a future, 
successful Merthyr Town Centre.  

 
3.4  Transport is a key consideration for the Town Centre and a series of the projects 

identified in both the Placemaking and Delivery Plans relate to either transport 
enhancements or require adaptations to transport infrastructure to be fully realised.  

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1  The Big Heart of Merthyr Tydfil Masterplan was produced in 2002 and, at the time, 

represented a major shift in the commitment to the way that the Town Centre was 
managed and improved.  This laid the basis for the café quarter and the extensive 
improvements to the spaces between the buildings and the public realm.  

 
4.2  The Town Centre Regeneration Masterplan (the second plan) was developed in 

2008 and gave rise to the creation of Penderyn Square, the Learning Quarter and 
the major transformation of Avenue de Clichy.  

 
4.3  The previous plans for the Town are either now completed or undeliverable.  The 

new masterplan will continue to build on the considerable and consistent project 
delivery over the last 18 years and will support the Town in becoming commercially 
viable and self-sustaining.  

 
4.4  The relocation of the Bus Station is one of the final projects from the 2008 review to 

be implemented; it is fitting that this forms the foundation for the next generation of 
strategic interventions in the Town Centre.  

 
4.5  The Placemaking Plan is part of a ‘family’ of policies and strategies which will shape 

decision making in Merthyr Tydfil over the next 15 years including the Local 
Development Plan, the Cyfarthfa Plan and the Economic Growth Strategy.  

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1  Merthyr Tydfil CBC have reviewed the draft Placemaking Plan and a sign-off meeting 

has been scheduled for the end of February.  
 

Page 6



5.2  In order to identify the ambition for Merthyr in 2035 key issues and opportunities 
currently facing the Town have been considered.   The process has resulted in the 
identification of seven core ambitions which will feature within the Placemaking Plan: 

 

 The tourism capital of the Valleys and Beacons (centre for adventure tourism to the 
Heads of the Valley and the Brecon Beacons and as well as an internationally 
renowned destination for industrial and cultural heritage).  

 A low carbon Town (which is designed for the 21st century’s needs of low energy 
use, renewable energy, low environmental impact and adaptability ) 

 A destination for services (the focus for high quality public services for the 
communities of the County Borough) 

 A better waterside Town (which makes full use of its location on the banks of the 
River Taff) 

 A smart Town (a digitally fluent Town that businesses, public services and citizens 
can capture the benefits of technology and the application of data) 

 An inclusive and engaging public realm (with inviting streets, squares and routes 
where people feel safe, welcomed and uplifted) 

 A resilient Town (with a wide variety of activities and occupiers so that the Town is 
resilient to change and able to adapt to a rapidly changing world) 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1  The vision for the Placemaking Plan is ambitious and long-term.  It will be a plan for 

the next 15 years, a plan that has the potential to transform Merthyr Tydfil and the 
role that it performs for the Capital City Region and the people that it serves.  

 
6.2  The vision for Merthyr Tydfil is achievable partly because of the things that are 

changing around the Town Centre.  Leisure, Tourism and destination lead 
developments are already happening and the future of the Town can be confidently 
based around this as a theme.  

 
6.3  There is a feeling that greater connectivity through the Metro will amplify the interest 

in Merthyr Tydfil as a visitor destination as well as an attractive residential location 
where citizens can have the ‘best of both worlds’ eg. access to city life in Cardiff and 
access to the outdoor opportunities on Merthyr’s green and wild doorstep.  

 
6.4  It is anticipated that the delivery of the key projects that will be delivered over the 

next 15 years will: 
 

 Deliver large-scale mixed use developments on the riverfront kick-starting the riverside 
regeneration 

 Establish better gateways into the Town  

 Deliver improved regeneration between public transport modes 

 Convert traditional buildings with new active uses  

 Consolidate the high street retail offer around Tesco and St. Tydfil’s Shopping Centre  

 Revive the Town’s traditional landscape  

 Exploit any opportunity to create new recreational spaces, uses and connections to the 
river to enhance the relationship between the Town Centre and the river.  

 Provide better pedestrian routes and spaces  

 Create spaces for social and cultural events  

 Develop a stronger digital presence and brand  
Page 7



 Bolster private sector sentiment towards Merthyr Tydfil so that conversion / development 
becomes viable without any public sector intervention 

 
6.5  The delivery of signature projects which are essential to the success of the 

Placemaking Plan.  These projects are the most ambitious in terms of impact and 
would serve to transform Merthyr Tydfil and the role that it currently performs in the 
Capital City Region.  These projects are the Glebeland Site (current Bus Station site) 
and the Train Station (Interchange Corridor).  

 
6.6  Due to its strategic location, Glebeland Site acts as the catalyst project to reshape 

the Town Centre while accelerating the regeneration of the riverside.  The proposal 
consist of the development of the current Bus Station site and the adjoining green 
land into a mixed use scheme that delivers high quality homes and office spaces, 
while ensuring riverside activation through unique food and retail offer.  

 
6.7  Merthyr Train Station is located close to the Town Centre.  The present configuration 

doesn’t allow for a clear sense of arrival and direction, hindering the reshaping of 
Merthyr Tydfil into a tourist destination.  The scheme consist in creating an improved 
strategic site allowing for greater connectivity and permeability.    

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1  The client group consisting of Merthyr Tydfil CBC and Welsh Government are to sign 

off the Placemaking Plan so the final version is available to share both internally and 
externally to key stakeholders.  

 
7.2 To meet with the Design Commission for Wales as a key stakeholder for a design 

review to be undertaken on the Masterplan.  This is a key requirement of Welsh 
Government as part of the commission to ensure this organisation is engaged with 
appropriately.  

 
7.3  Once the Placemaking plan is finalised, the Urbanists along with Merthyr Tydfil CBC 

will present the plan with Welsh Government officials to discuss policy direction and 
potential funding programmes that can be accessed in the future to deliver key 
projects identified within the Delivery Plan.  

 
7.4  To ensure that the Urbanists engage with Ian Ritchie Architects the team 

commissioned to develop The Cyfarthfa Plan to ensure that both masterplans are 
complementary and synchronise with each other.  This is an imperative action to 
ensure that both plans have the same aspirations for the Town Centre.  

 
7.5 A detailed consultation will be held with key stakeholders one the plan is finalised.  

This will include Elected Members and the Town Centre Partnership.  
 
7.6  Review and identify actions for the two key identified projects namely Glebeland Site 

and Train Station in order to progress with the development stages of both projects.  
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The work being undertaken to support the further re-development of the Town 
Centre has been identified as one of the key projects supporting the delivery of the 
Working Life theme contained within the Merthyr Tydfil Corporate Wellbeing Plan. 

Page 8



The project offers clear evidence to support how the Council is aiming to help people 
feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the needs of businesses, with a 
developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr Tydfil an attractive destination.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE   

CLLR. GERAINT THOMAS 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) 

Date 
Document Location 

  
 
 

 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the 
Council’s Constitution?  
 

No  

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Continued Development of the Town Centre – 
Evening Economy 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1  The report provides an update on progress made in relation to the development of 

the Evening Economy.  
 
1.2  The report aims to make Scrutiny Members aware of the progress made in relation to 

the ‘Merthyr After Dark’ Strategy and the future actions which will be implemented to 
achieve the objectives of the report.   

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1  The content of this report to be discussed and noted. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Welsh Government produced ‘A Framework for Managing the Night Time 

Economy in Wales’ in 2017. Using ambitions laid out in the Well Being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act (2015), the framework has shifted from a reactive focus, to 
a proactive and preventive approach to support prosperous and safe night-time 
economies in Wales. 

3.2 In November 2017 a Scrutiny Report was provided on how MTCBC were aiming to 
address the challenges of developing the evening economy and addressing the three 
objectives of the national framework, which were: 

Date Written 18th February 2020  

Report Author Zoe Thomas / Paul Lewis    

Service Area Community Regeneration  

Committee Date 3rd March 2020  

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 Objective 1 - To support the development of a systematic approach to increase 
understanding of the night-time economy based on intelligence and accurate 
information. 

 Objective 2 - To promote sustainable environments and support prevention 
strategies to create healthy, safe and diverse night-time economies in Wales. 

 Objective 3 - To support effective multi-agency management of the night-time 
economy and enforcement at the local level. 

 
3.3  The report also provided detail on three further actions undertaken in 2017 that have 

been outlined below.  
 
3.4  The Town Centre Partnership produced a short-term action plan under the theme of 

a Safe, Secure and Attractive Town Centre (2017). A task and finish group was 
formed to develop relationships with key partners, identify medium and longer term 
issues; and gather momentum with quick wins.  

 
3.4  In partnership with the Business Improvement District, a Perception Survey was 

undertaken of the Town Centre by independent consultants Storecheckers.  This 
resulted in the commencement of street by street audits and actions. Glebeland 
Street was the first priority area. Improvements included removing planters, cleaning 
and painting of the public realm; targeted grant assistance as well as visits to 
licensed premises on a monthly basis. 

 
3.5   The challenges around homelessness were highlighted in a report to this Scrutiny 

Committee on the 24th October 2017. Issues identified for this included highlighting 
the issue of homelessness and reference the night shelter, the visible homeless 
(particularly in Town Centre); licensing, public protection issues (violent crime). 

 
 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1  Following the Town Centre Partnerships’ Safe, Secure and Attractive working group, 

an Evening Economy Board superseded this group and developed ‘Merthyr After 
Dark’ an overarching strategic plan. This sets out a clear vision for the evening and 
night-time economy, key objectives and key performance indicators. Sat underneath 
this is the annual Action Plan that highlights the key projects, responsible 
organisations and timescales that will achieve the objectives and ultimately the 
vision. 

4.2  The ambition of the Authority was to work towards Purple Flag status that provides 
national accreditation and recognition for a varied and safe night-time economy 
similar to the standards set for parks with green flags and beaches with blue flags.     

4.3  The three objectives of the Merthyr After Dark strategy are:  
 

 Wellbeing:  a welcoming, clean and safe town centre;  

 Movement:  a secure pattern of arrival circulation and departure; and  

 Appeal:  a vibrant choice and rich mix of entertainment and activity. 
 
 

Page 12



4.4  The Evening Economy will be a strong component to align with the new Town Centre 
Masterplan and will assist in guiding new developments within the evening economy 
and diversifying the economic base.  Consideration will also be given to the 
relationship with Merthyr Leisure Village.  The Masterplan will also enable us to 
develop the evening economy as part of the Town Centre Partnership vision of being 
the regional destination for shopping, business and leisure. 

 
 

5.  WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 Operation Protect. A number of town centre operations haven taken place with 

formal action taken on unlicensed and overcharging taxis, action plans and reviews 
on licensed premises operating not in accordance with Licensing Objectives. 

5.2 A new footprint and camera stock review has been adopted with new, modern, town 
centre cameras being put in place. The ongoing efficiency agenda has however led 
to proposed efficiencies on manned coverage of cameras with us moving to an 
unmanned CCTV provision. This will have a negative consequence for us in policing 
the night-time economy. 

5.3 Data and Intelligence – Localised joint working with South Wales Police has 
continued to be a key aspect in our delivery of effective preventative and 
investigative techniques. We have been affected with loss of data from a scaling 
back of a project undertaken with the Police and Crime Commissioner on pooling 
violence data from hospitals that allowed us to access data on non-police reported 
violent crime. 

5.4 Since the last Scrutiny Report the Head of Public Protection and Housing post was 
subject to a voluntary redundancy.  A rejig of services has led to the Operational 
manger taking on more strategic work along with line management of additional 
services. This has affected capacity within the teams to deliver on actions from a 
Protection and Safety Services perspective.  

5.5 Again, since the last Scrutiny Report the Town Centre Manager that was leading on 
the Evening Economy Agenda left the authority.  The Strategic Regeneration Team 
has incorporated the Town Centre management function within the service area and 
the wider work programme therefore existing priorities have prevented progression 
with the Strategy.  The re-establishment of the Board has become a priority for the 
next financial year.   

5.6 A Town Centre Support Officer role has been created which provides a first point of 
contact for Town Centre businesses and users.  Any issues identified that impact on 
the Town and the evening economy will be highlighted to the Officer who would 
identify and co-ordinate a mitigation through engagement with relevant internal or 
external stakeholders.  

 

5.7  Continued support is provided to local businesses to ensure venues are well 
managed to meet varied tastes and deliver vibrant, successful late night offers.  
 
 
 

Page 13



6.  WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 The draft ‘Merthyr After Dark’ Strategy’s current vision is “The Evening and Night-

Time Economy will enhance Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre, helping to create a 
stimulating destination providing a safe, secure environment, with a vibrant choice 
and rich mix of entertainment and activity for all”.  The role of the Board will be to 
work towards achieving this through the delivery of key actions.  

6.2 That Merthyr Tydfil is nationally recognised as a safe, secure environment with a rich 
mix of entertainment and activity for all by securing Purple Flag recognition.   

6.3     Continuation of our proactive Operations to police the night-time economy. 

6.4  A new modern CCTV infrastructure meeting best practice needs. 

6.5  Access to latest intelligence to ensure we can react to emerging issues in a timely 
effective manner. 

6.6  To have in place a resilient enforcement service. 

 
 

7. WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 

7.1 Review the 2019 draft ‘Merthyr After Dark Strategy’ as the strategic vision and 
objective for the evening economy for the next three years to ensure it remains fit for 
purpose and to update the performance indicators and Action Plan to reflect the 
future work of the Board.  

7.2  Re-establish the Evening Economy Board and continue to work in partnership with 
our key delivery partners.  A review of membership is imperative to ensure the right 
representation is targeted to support and review delivery of the Action Plan.  

7.3 Continue to diversify our economy; the Regeneration Department will continue to 
develop opportunities to attract restaurants, music venues and other entertainment 
options to locate in the town centre.  Ensuring there is a range of entertainment will 
provide a choice of different entertainment and cultural activities will broaden the 
demographics of town centre visitors.  

7.4  Continue to work with the Community Safety partners and deliver the current action 
plan to reduce alcohol-related crime and injury. 

7.5  Nominate an Evening Economy Champion to ensure the work of the Board is 
recognised and act as an ambassador for the town when meeting with potential 
investors.  

7.6  Continue review of CCTV provision and seek funding opportunities through 
collaboration. 

7.7  Through the Cwm Taf Community Safety Board raise the concerns over lack of 
intelligence products on Violent Crime from the PCC project. 

7.8  Review resilience through the Corporate Capacity workstream. 

 

 

 Page 14



8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The work that has and will continue to be undertaken in relation to the development 
and delivery of the Evening Economy will support outputs under two of the themes 
contained within the Merthyr Tydfil Corporate Wellbeing Plan: 

Living Well (People are empowered to live independently within their communities, 
where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health); and  

Working Life (People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination). 

 
 
 
 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE   

CLLR. GERAINT THOMAS 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) 

Date 
Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the 
Council’s Constitution?  
 

No  

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Corporate Self-Evaluation – Question 3 (Leadership & 
Management) 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Self-evaluation is a rigorous process that enables Chief Officers, Heads of Service 

and officers to be critically reflective about outcomes, service provision and 
leadership and management. 
 

1.2 Following a refocus exercise of documentation to ensure it continued to meet the 
organisation’s needs; the Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT) approved 
the re-introduction of the corporate self-evaluation process in June 2019.    
 

1.3 The process is structured into ‘bite-sized’ chunks on a question-by-question basis.  
This aims to support all officers involved to contribute to the process whilst 
maintaining their ability to manage their other multiple priorities. 

 

1.4 This report focuses on the completion of the self-evaluation undertaken by the Chief 
Officer: Community Regeneration and his teams in relation to Key Question 3 
(Leadership and Management).  The response directly relates to the Working Life 
theme laid down in the Council’s Corporate Plan (Focus on the Future: wellbeing in 
our community). 

 

1.5 This report and its appendices highlight the key findings of the self-evaluation 
activity; outline areas of good practice along with areas for development; and 
identifies the priorities for improvement that will be developed into a Business 
Improvement Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 

Date Written 18th February 2020 

Report Author Alyn Owen/Performance Team 

Service Area Community Regeneration, Public 
Protection and Housing 

Committee Date 3rd March 2020 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 Committee Members are requested to review the documentation and key findings 

following completion of Key Question 3 of the process. 

2.2 Committee Members to review and scrutinise the evaluative judgements provided by 
officers within the report identified through completion of the self-evaluation process. 

 
 

 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Self-evaluation is a business process that is rigorous and enables organisations to be 

critically reflective about outcomes, service provision and leadership and 
management.  In 2013/14, the Council introduced a self-evaluation process completed 
by officers at Head of Service level.  The format of the challenge sessions was based 
on high-level challenge in a session lasting 2-2½ hours; with a number of Heads of 
Service. 

 
3.2 Over time, using lessons learned over previous years, the format of the challenge of 

self-evaluation was developed (e.g.) self-evaluation was undertaken on a service-level 
basis; with challenge being offered a Performance Board consisting the Chief 
Executive, Directorate Lead; Portfolio Member and the Chair of the Scrutiny 
Committee to which the service reported.  The key outcome of the process was to 
identify areas of good practice; along with priorities for improvement. 

 
3.3 In 2019, a refocus exercise was undertaken to ensure the self-evaluation documents 

continued to meet the organisation’s needs (e.g.) offered officers completing the 
forms opportunity to outline the current service position; highlight any good practice; 
note areas for development and to identify the services’ priorities for improvement. 
The documents were organised in the form of 3 key questions: 
 

 Outcomes; 

 Provision and Service Delivery; and  

 Leadership and Management. 
 

There is no specific order in which the questions should be completed as long as all 
three questions are completed within the year. 
 

3.4 Following consideration of the updated documents by the Council’s Corporate 
Management Team (CMT); the new format was approved for re-introduction in June 
2019.  

 
3.5 As part of the process cycle supporting the delivery of the self-evaluation process 

(see Appendix 1), it was confirmed each completed question should be presented 
before the sector-specific scrutiny committee that normally scrutinises the 
outputs/outcomes for the relevant service area.  This was an opportunity for 
Committee Members to review and explore facets of the wide range of activities for 
which Chief Officers were accountable whilst for services; it was seen as an 
opportunity for details of their services to be brought before scrutiny to outline 
positive practice and achievements along with any challenges faced and areas for 
development. 

Page 18



 

 

3.6 Committee Members are asked to review the content of the completed questions and 
consider performance, areas of good practice, areas for development and, perhaps 
most importantly, the services’ priorities for improvement for the coming year.  
Scrutineers are also required to assess whether the judgement reached through 
completion of the process is appropriate. 

 

4 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1  In previous years, the Council had undertaken self-evaluation activities annually on a 

service-by service basis.  The process required Heads of Service to review 
project/programme activity and reflect on what had been achieved, as well as 
identifying what needed to be prioritised next with a view to planning how should be 
done.  

 

5 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1  Following approval of the self-evaluation process and paperwork; discussions took 

place with each of the 4 Chief Officers who confirmed that a copy of the paperwork 
should be issued to their teams so they might consider how they wished to contribute 
to preparing a response.   
 

5.2 This report links to the response for the service areas for which the Chief Officer – 
Community Regeneration is accountable (the Working Life theme contained 
within MTCBC’s Corporate Wellbeing Plan).  With support from the Performance & 
Scrutiny Team; a workshop was arranged to enable all relevant officers to have input 
to the production of the response document.   

 

5.3 A 360 degree appraisal was used helped to capture staff views on leadership and 
management.  Staff within the teams had an opportunity to provide feedback, 
submitting this directly to the Performance & Scrutiny officer who collated the data 
and undertook basic analysis of the findings.  Findings were then forwarded to 
service leads to use when completing their Question 3 proforma.  Members can find 
an overview of this this 360 degree feedback attached to this report as Appendix 2.   
 

5.4    The key findings of the workshop session were identified as listed below: 
 

 Feedback received from officers at all levels showed the overall satisfaction 
level of the leadership and management within the service areas to be Good: 

 The process required scores to be allocated across 6 themes (listed 
below); using the following sliding scale: 1 = poor to 6 = excellent.  On 
analysis of the responses received, the following detail was identified: 

 

Area of feedback Average score 
across all services 

Human skills 5 

Leadership 5.5 

Communication 5.4 

Developing Others 5.6 

Delegation & Instruction 5.6 

Values 5.7 

 

 Staff were asked to list the three things they found best about their manager.  On 
analysis of responses the ‘Top 3’ themes were found to be: 

Page 19



 

 

 

(1) Approachable, friendly and good sense of humour (64%) 

(2) Clear communicator (57%) 
Honest and trustworthy (57%) 
Supportive, inclusive and enthusiastic (57%) 

(3) Spends time working with staff / open door policy (50%) 
Motivates and inspires / leads by example (50%) 

 

 Staff listed the three things they found least helpful about their manager.  On 
analysis of responses the ‘Top 3’ themes were found to be: 

 

(1) Less accessible due to increasing management task demands (36%) 

(2) Manager can seem worried or stressed and this can affect the team (14%) 
Leans towards micro-management on occasion (14%) 

(3) Could show more confidence when making decisions (13%) 
 
5.5 An internal challenge session took place on Wednesday 12th February 2020.  

Officers from across the Community Regeneration, Leisure, Culture and Sports 
Development; Public Protection and Housing teams attended this session.  
Discussion and challenge took place around the first draft responses and this led to 
the identification of other factors for inclusion that could strengthen the report.   

 

5.6 A precis of the key points captured in the narrative responses produced by the 
services is available for review by Committee Members in Appendix 3. 
 

5.7 Through completion of this process a number of priorities for improvement have 
been identified.  These include: 
 

 Begin planning for the end of EU funding immediately to enable the 
Council to inform future funders of local needs so that future provision can 
be effectively shaped; 

 Gain clarity about the structure of the organisation going forward to ensure 
team priorities continue to be aligned to the corporate priorities; 

 Work on developing a clearer process for succession planning that 
includes way to reduce any over reliance on key officers that are SPODs; 

 Work with HR to secure further training on the Focus on my Performance 
process so managers and staff are clearer on its purpose, structure and 
timings; 

 Secure a corporate definition of value for money (what this means and 
how we measure it); 

 Look at further ways to improve collaborative/integrated approaches 
across the Council; 

 Further develop how customer feedback can be used to inform future 
service delivery;  

 Managers to refresh their knowledge and understanding of corporate 
policies and procedures; and 

 All staff to refresh their knowledge and understanding of GDPR. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

 

5.8  Following completion of the six sub-questions, the following judgments were noted 
for each of the sub questions: 
 

Question Self-evaluative 
judgement 

How effective is leadership of the service? Adequate /Good 

How effective is people management in the service? Good 

How effective is resource management in the service? Good 

Does the service set the right priorities? Good 

How well does the service engage with feedback from 
stakeholders and address issues they identify? 

Adequate /Good 

How does the service fulfil its statutory responsibility 
relating to safeguarding? 

Adequate /Good 

 
Reviewing the assessment judgements made above; the whole question judgment 
has been found to be Good.   

 

6 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 The Chief Officer: Community Regeneration and his teams have identified a number 

of areas for development upon which they should focus.  By discussing and 
exploring these, and considering any other requirements such as proposals/ 
recommendations for improvement from auditors and regulators, the key priorities for 
improvement will be confirmed. 
 

6.2 A series of Business Improvement Plans (BIPs) will be developed with the support of 
the Council’s Performance and Scrutiny Team.  These BIPs will again be 
collaboratively developed by the Working Life working group; the main aim of this will 
be: 
 

 To clearly identify the actions to be undertaken to positively progress the 
priorities for improvement, giving a clear indication of the desired outcomes 
(i.e.) what the improvement would look like; 

 To identify who is accountable for the delivering the actions and provide clarity 
on what the required timescales would be; 

 To provide a tool for regular monitoring of the progress made; and the 
effectiveness of the actions identified to improve; and 

 To have a standardised corporate way in which improvement activities can 
be organised, developing supporting governance arrangements. 

 

6.3 The findings of the self-evaluation activities will also support clearer identification of 
opportunities to develop more collaborative/integrated working processes across the 
organisation and more widely with external partners/stakeholders. 

 

7 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1   Secure the views and feedback of Scrutiny Committee Members the completion of  

the self-evaluation process; as well as discussion around the self-assessed 
judgements. 

 

7.2 Continue to populate the Business Improvement Plans; and schedule a working     

Page 21



 

 

group meeting to look at developing the actions required to progress these providing 
clarity around accountability for completion; timescales  etc. 
 

7.3   Look at how we ensure we build the proposed ‘areas for development’ highlighted by  
WAO into the developing BIPs (where appropriate) so that progress of these 
proposals can be monitored and evidence of action recorded as required. 

 

7.4 On completion of Question 3; the Chief Officer will review the key findings across all 
three questions completed and must make an overall summary judgement.  This 
would be captured in a Position Statement – a precis document that outlines    

 

7.5 The final step of this cycle of self-evaluation is for all Chief Officers to work with 
Performance and Scrutiny Team officers to produce an holistic report which would 
look at the findings across all four themes within the Corporate Plan to identify 
strengths and common priorities for improvement on an organisational level.  This 
report will be presented at Governance Scrutiny. 

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The corporate self-evaluation process is based around the services/activities delivered 
and should reflect the contribution made in relation to the four wellbeing objectives set 
down by the Council in focus in the Corporate Wellbeing Plan.   

 

8.2 This report specifically links to the Working Life objective within the Council’s  
Corporate Wellbeing Plan: People feel supported to develop the skills required 
to meet the needs of businesses; with a developing, safe infrastructure making 
Merthyr Tydfil an attractive destination.   
 

8.3   Through completion of the self-evaluation process; we are also be able to 
demonstrate our team’s contribution to support progress against the following 
objectives: 
 

 Best Start to Life:  Children and young people get the best start to life and 
are equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals 

 Living Well:  People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental 
health 

 

 

 
ALYN OWEN 
CHIEF OFFICER: COMMUNITY 
REGENERATION 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER: REGENERATION & 

PUBLIC PROTECTION 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

Page 22



 

 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Self-Evaluation Process Cycle: 4 months x 3 
 
 
    Internal challenge      External challenge 
 
 
 
 
 

                  
          

Evidence 
gathering & 
judgment

Internal 
challenge

on judgment

Internal 
challenge at 

CMT

External 
challenge

Scrutiny

Evidence 
gathering & 
judgment

Internal 
challenge

on judgment

Internal 
challenge at 

CMT

External 
challenge

Scrutiny

Evidence 
gathering & 

judgment

Internal 
challenge

on judgment

Internal 
challenge at 

CMT

External 
challenge

Scrutiny

SER Question # 
Evidence and 
judgment 

 ESLT              

 CRPPH             According to 

 SMB                CO structure 

 SLT 

 TBC 

Scrutiny 

SER  

Question # 
SER  

Question # 

SER  

Question # 

On completion of the 3 key questions; thematic Performance 
Board sessions would be scheduled in Months 12-13 - here there 

would be challenge on the overall position statement 

Months  
1-2  

Month 3 

Month 4 

Months  
5-6  

Months  
9-10  

Month 7 Month 11 

Month 8 Month 12 

Appendix 1 

P
age 25



Performance Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Analysis of commonalities     Report to CMT to identify support needed to drive 
improvement 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BEST START 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

WORKING LIFE 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
WELLBEING 

Overall Position Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

LIVING WELL 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for 
Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

 

SUMMONING 

CIRCLE 

Best Start 

Working Life 

Environmental Wellbeing 

Living Well 

Finance & 
Accounting 

HR & Legal 

ICT 

Corporate Communications 

Page 26



Appendix 2 

Corporate Self-Evaluation Question 3:  Leadership & Management 

Human Skills Community 
Regeneration 

Housing & 
Supporting 

People 

Env. Health Protection & 
Safety 

Services 

All Areas 

Has excellent interpersonal skills with staff 
at all levels 

6 5 6 4 5 

I feel able to approach them with any 
problems I have in my work 

6 5.5 6 4 5.5 

Demonstrate consistency and fairness to all 5.5 5 6 4 5 

Provides candid and constructive feedback 
on performance 

5.5 5.5 6 4 5.5 

Recognition is given for effective work 5.5 5.5 4.5 4 5 

Leadership      

Inspires loyalty by displaying the right 
leadership style in the right situation 

6 5 6 5 5.5 

Able to defuse conflict/ill feeling between 
team members 

5.5 5 6 4 5 

Translates strategic objectives into 
operational plans 

5.5 5.5 6 5.5 5.5 

Able to motivate, enthuse and influence 
people to perform with a positive attitude 

5.5 5 6 4.5 5.5 

Gains trust and support to others by 
treating them with respect and fairness 

6 5.5 6 5.5 6 

Communication      

Communicates effectively – the appropriate 
people are involved and consulted 

5.5 5.5 6 5.5 5.5 

Able to adapt their presentation styles to 
suit 

5.5 5.5 5 4.5 5 

Encourages contribution/involvement 
when hosting meetings or briefings 

5.5 5.56 6 5.5 5.5 

The team briefings are effective and 
encourage the team to participate 

5.5 5.5 6 5 5.5 

If I offer an opinion, I feel they listen and 
are willing to take my ideas on board 

5.5 5.5 6 5.5 5.5 

 

  

Page 27



Developing Others Community 
Regeneration 

Housing & 
Supporting 

People 

Env. Health Protection & 
Safety 

Services 

All Areas 

Displays patience when someone is being 
trained in a new way of working 

5.5 5 6 5.5 5.5 

Explains decisions, solicits suggestions and 
supports people 

5.5 5.5 6 6 6 

Ability to recognise and harness the 
potential of team members 

5.5 5.5 6 5.5 5.5 

Shares knowledge and information openly 
encouraging others to develop 

5.5 5.5 6 5.5 5.5 

Able to recognise and act on development 
needs swiftly and appropriately 

5.5 5.5 6 4.5 5.5 

Delegation & Instruction      

Work is delegated appropriately to all 
members of their team 

5 5.5 6 5.5 5.5 

Team are always aware of the tasks in hand 5.5 5.5 6 5.5 5.5 

Ensures that targets and objectives are 
clearly communicated 

5.5 5.5 6 5.5 5.5 

Encourages people to take pride in shared 
objectives and goals 

6 5.5 6 5.5 6 

Provide clear instruction/direction 5.5 5.5 6 5.5 5.5 

Delegation & Instruction      

Demonstrates INTEGRITY in all business 
activities 

6 5.5 6 5.5 6 

Promotes exceptional SERVICE in line with 
customer driven needs 

6 5.5 6 5 5.5 

Actively develops PARTNERSHIPS with 
internal and external customers 

6 5.5 6 6 6 

Embraces role with PASSION – others strive 
to emulate performance 

6 5.5 5.5 5.5 5.5 

Fosters a culture of pride, teamwork and 
continuous improvement to facilitate 
GROWTH 

6 5.5 5.5 5 5.5 

Demonstrates flexibly and embraces 
work/life balance and FAMILY & 
COMMUNITY friendly places 

5.5 5 6 6 5.5 

 

 

Page 28



What’s the best thing about our leader? 

  

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Community Regeneration Housing & Supporting People Environmental Health Protection & Safety Services

P
age 29



Least helpful thing about our manager 

       

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

Community Regeneration Housing & Supporting People

Environmental Health Protection & Safety Services

P
age 30



Key characteristics of managers 

Officers were requested to select the characteristics they felt their managers 

possessed.  The chart below outlines the key findings: 

 

 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Community Regeneration

Housing & Supporting People

Environmental Health

Protection & Safety Services

Effective - 93% Visible - 93% Obstructive - 9%

Consistent - 79% Unfair - 0% Supportive - 100%

Honest - 100% Demanding - 21% Open - 86%

Unrealsitic - 0% Petty - 0% Empathetic - 93%

Encouraging - 86% Perceptive - 79% Caring - 93%

Flexible - 93%

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Self-Evaluation: Question 3 – Leadership and Management 

Question  Key points identified 
3.1:  
How effective is leadership of the service? 
 
Judgement: Adequate/Good 

 Officers found it almost impossible to predict what services would look like in 5-years time.  
This was due to the large amount of uncertainty under which teams were operating.  Factors 
noted included: 
 

- Lack of clarity around continuation funding for externally-funded projects (especially 
though funded via European funding); 

- Britain’s exit from the EU and any subsequent funding agreements for Councils; 
- The current work ongoing to secure organisational sustainability for the Council  

 

 Despite capacity pressures that were acknowledged by respondents, there was evidence 
that teams still delivered positive outcomes; with collaborative work being a critical factor in 
supporting this (working smarter, not harder); 

 Leaders and managers have evidenced strong contributions to corporate priorities and 
wellbeing objectives and an increase in discussions across teams about these;  

 The recent appointment of the Interim CEO and Deputy CEO was seen to have had a 
positive impact on communication corporately; 

 Teams have strong learning cultures; and it was noted that there was an increasing use of 
skills, knowledge and experience of staff rather than employing consultants; 

 Good use of organisational policies to support staff (e.g.) sickness absence policy etc. 

 Many Councillors have strong links with teams under this theme and show the value 
of/promote the work undertaken by services in the community; 

 Staff feedback shows there is a need for additional clarity to understand the expectations of 
them; 

 Concerns were noted around the lack of clarity possibly impacting on the retention and 
recruitment of staff; 

 There has been a lack of training and skills development over the past several years which 
staff suggested needed to be reviewed;  

 There is a lack of robust succession planning; 

 PASS services have had a changing portfolio and been subject to efficiencies exercises; and 

 Managers and leaders keep a watching brief over governance arrangements to ensure they 
remain practical and fit for purpose in line with changing needs and service demands. 

 

  

Appendix 3 

P
age 33



Question  Key points identified 
3.2: 
How effective is people management in the 
service? 
 
Judgement: Good 

 The majority of staff feel well-supported by their manager; 

 There is strong evidence that the staff sickness policy and procedure is consistently used; 

 Regular one-to-one meetings are held between managers and officers to review 
actions/activity and progress against personal objectives; 

 It was noted that it might be useful for a refresher session to be offered to staff around the 
Focus on my Performance process as, although this is being followed, there are 
inconsistencies in how this tool is being used; 

 Staff perception of management shows an holistic judgement across all services under the 
Chief Officer: Community Regeneration as good; 

 Staff have shown a continued commitment by staff to successfully deliver services; however, 
the findings show a mixed picture morale and motivation which can be linked back to the 
level of pressure felt by specific service areas; 

 Service resilience was identified as an issue; with diminishing capacity being given as a 
reason for this.  There is a feeling from officers that there is an over-reliance on key staff; 
with Single Points of Dependency (SPODs) having become a significant issue corporately. 

3.3 
How effective is resource management in 
the service? 
 
Judgement: Good 
 

 There is no organisational definition for the term ‘value for money’; this meant that officers 
could only place a subjective judgement as to whether they delivered value for money in the 
services they provide; 

 Teams have good working relationships with officers in finance and accountancy; with 
feedback from officers being welcome and constructive.  Evidence demonstrates budget 
management for the services have good processes and is well managed; 

 Delivery of planned efficiencies has had an impact on all services but this has been of 
varying degrees (e.g.) within Employability services, only the core employability budget has 
been impacted; however, officers in Environmental Health had faced significant negative 
impact over the last few years; 

 There is evidence that there is a strong alignment between service delivery and the 
corporate priorities and service outcomes.  Work continues to ensure all new/emerging 
strategies are aligned to/dovetailed with the Corporate Plan; 

 It has been noted that the degree of uncertainty currently felt by staff has led to some officers 
taking annual leave rather than sickness leave when they are unwell. 

  

P
age 34



Question  Key points identified 
3.4 
Does the service set the right priorities? 
 
Judgement:  Good 
 

 The findings of the Cwm Taf Joint Needs Assessment were reviewed when writing the 
current Council Corporate Plan to identify basic community needs; 

 With a large proportion of staff being externally funded; a number of services are not only 
designed and delivered to meet the outcomes set down in the corporate plan, but also have 
to be in line with funders’ requirements; 

 A number of the services have outcomes set to meet statutory requirements with 
performance monitored and measured by external organisations. 

 New statutory requirements have the effect of increasing workload; this can temporarily skew 
priorities and service delivery in the run up to implementation; 

 Teams have a number of members with significant experience in working with our 
communities to offer advice and support;  

 Teams are regularly involved in consultation exercises to secure the views of communities 
(e.g.) Home to School Transport; Air Quality Management; Bus Station etc.; this feedback is 
considered when developing and planning activities; 

 Regular discussions, group and forum meetings are held with our key partners; participants 
and the wider community; 

 All services are aligned with the corporate priorities (either directly or indirectly); and services 
are aligned to the corporate wellbeing objectives.   

 The PASS Services intelligence-led model enables priority setting to be ‘live’ and informed 

3.5 
How well does the service engage with 
feedback from stakeholders and address 
issues they identify? 
 
Judgement:   Adequate/Good 

 All services have consistent contact with the customers their services aim to support; 

 All services work collaboratively in order to deliver outcomes; and regularly; liaise with 
counterparts within partnership organisations; 

 Services undertake surveys and service evaluation processes to gather information on 
customer experience and use this to strengthen service delivery; 

 Services attend local, regional and national network events to strengthen their connections; 
additionally, some teams hold large scale, community-based events and secure feedback at 
these; 

 Day-to-day feedback from customers (both internal and external) is considered when teams 
refocus the plans  

 Social media is increasingly being used as a tool for community engagement; however, as 
highlighted in Question 2; capacity is currently an issue within the Corporate 
Communications teams which can sometimes lead to delays in notifications being published. 

  

P
age 35



Question  Key points identified 
3.6 
How does the service fulfil to statutory 
responsibility to safeguarding? 
 
Judgement:  Adequate/Good 
 

 A number of services engage with vulnerable people as part of their everyday service 
delivery; and act in accordance with the relevant corporate policies and procedures; 

 Where workers undertake home visits, they are required to follow the corporate Lone Worker 
Policy; 

 Safeguarding is core to the work of the Protection and Safety Services (PASS) teams; 

 Some, but not all staff have received safeguarding training to ensure they are able to adhere 
to the policies; and know when to seek support or make a referral; 

 A number of services work closely with the Council’s Social Services department to provide 
support and help to the clients within whom they work (e.g.) prevention of doorstep crime and 
scamming; inspection of houses, investigation of statutory nuisance complaints etc. 

 Project participants accessing services may have experienced a number of issues related to 
safeguarding (e.g.) potential child neglect; vulnerable adults who are dependent on alcohol; 
drugs/prescription medication etc.  Clear referral routes identified can be used where 
appropriate; 

 In collaborative working arrangements where there is a multi-agency approach taken to 
tasks/activities; staff ensure they are aware of what the Council’s agreed roles and 
responsibilities are and act in accordance to this 

 All staff are advised of the requirements to adhere to confidentiality procedures when dealing 
with individuals; or sensitive corporate information; 

 All staff are required to work safely and, as laid down in the Health and Safety at Work Act, to 
look after not only their own safety but also ensuring those around them remain safe.  This 
links to the management of risks and, where appropriate, the undertaking of risk 
assessments. 

 

 

P
age 36



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Work Programme 2019/20  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Work Programme and approves, revises or 
amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 20th February 2020 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 3rd March 2020 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 38



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

Page 39



c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 40



f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

 

APPENDIX I 

Page 42



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 
 

 
  

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

4th June 2019 

Draft Committee Work 

Programme 2018/19 

 

Cllr Julian Amos (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and make any required adjustments 

to this in order to agree its content and sign off the Work Programme for 2019-2020. 

Cyfarthfa Heritage Area Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen / Chris :Long/ 
Zoe Thomas 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  Following the update report received by the Committee in July 
2018; a subsequent report has been requested on recent developments linked to the 
Cyfarthfa Heritage Area.  The report should contain details on the governance activities 
supporting delivery of this activity for the Committee to scrutinise.  It should also 
demonstrate how the area will feature as part of the Design Council for Wales’ Crucible 
Report. 
 

16th July 2019 

Refocus of the CCTV service 
area 

Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen / Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny and Challenge:-  Following the management of the CCTV service being transferred 
to the Community Safety and Regulatory Compliance Manager’s service area; Committee 
Members would like a report outlining any proposed changes to the way in which the CCTV 
will work.  The Committee also expects some detail on how the Council plans to use the 
system to generate intelligence that will strengthen the Council’s performance not only in 
community safety-related work but also in the broader sense. 
 

Anti-social Behaviour Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen / Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee requests officers bring forward a report which will 
offer them an overview of the current status in relation to anti-social behaviour and its 
impact on residents of and visitors to Merthyr Tydfil County Borough.  The report should 
contain the latest available data  on a local and national level in relation to this topic.  
Members would welcome an update on the current funding situation re: this; as well as an 
overview of partnership arrangements supporting delivery of activity addressing this issue. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 43



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 
Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

10th September 
2019 

Self-Evaluation Findings: 
Question 1: Outcomes 
 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and 
set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to the 
first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Destination Development Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Ryan 
Barry 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   The Scrutiny Committee will receive a report on the progress 
made linked to the work undertaken by the Council linked to ongoing Destination 
Development activity.  The Committee will scrutinise the report to identify progress made 
to date; explore the impact of these activities on the ecomony; and the opportunities 
these activities make on jobs/careers and training and skills development  

Committee Work 

Programme 2019/2020 

 

Cllr Julian Amos (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and make any required adjustments 

to this in order to agree its content and sign off the Work Programme for 2019-2020. 

 

22nd October 
2019 

Findings of WAO 
examination visit 2018-19 

WAO officers/Councillor 

Geraint Thomas/Alyn 

Owen/Chris Long/Andrew 

Mogford 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   Following an examination visit made by Welsh Audit Office (WAO) 

to review the Working Life theme with a particular focus on the component ‘Making Skills 

work for Merthyr Tydfil: developing the workforce of the future’; officer from WAO will 

present key findings noted during the examination visit directly to Committee Members 

Cwm Taf Youth Offending 
Service (YOS) 

Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen/ Paul Lewis / 
Lyndon Lewis (Cwm Taf 
YOS) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   Following an update received by the Committee in April 2019; 
members requested a report be received detailing the work being undertaken by the Youth 
Offending Service within Merthyr Tydfil.   The Committee expects most up-to-date data to 
be included; and that this information is put into the context of the key interventions being 
delivered by Cwm Taf YOS; and the impact of these. 
 

Substance Misuse Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen/Paul Lewis / Ceri 

Ford (RCT CBC) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following an update received by the Committee in April 2019; 
members requested a report be received focusing on the specific situation in relation to 
Merthyr Tydfil regarding substance misuse.  The Committee expects the most up-to-date 
information for the County Borough to be included; and that this information covers the use 
of both alcohol and illegal substances.  The report should also offer an outline of the key 
interventions being delivered and the impact of these. 
 

P
age 44



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

3rd December 
2019 

 
MEETING 

CANCELLED 

Cwm Taf Youth Offending 
Service (YOS) 

Paul Lewis / Lyndon Lewis 
(Cwm Taf YOS) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   Following an update received by the Committee in April 2019; 
members requested a report be received detailing the work being undertaken by the Youth 
Offending Service within Merthyr Tydfil.   The Committee expects most up-to-date data to 
be included; and that this information is put into the context of the key interventions being 
delivered by Cwm Taf YOS; and the impact of these. 

Homelessness Strategy Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen/ Suzanne Lewis-
Abbott  

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following approval of the Council’s Homelessness Strategy by Full 
Council on 17th December 2018, the Committee has requested a report be brought back to 
identify what impact had been noted as a result of the strategy being rolled out.  The 
Committee expects any relevant performance data to be included in the report; along with 
any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

14th January 
2020 

Self-Evaluation Findings: 
Question 2: Provision and 
Service Delivery 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and 
set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to the 
second key question which is linked to Service Delivery.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Homelessness Strategy Cllr Geraint Thomas / Chris 
Long / Suzanne Lewis-
Abbott / Cerys Clark  

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following approval of the Council’s Homelessness Strategy by Full 
Council on 17th December 2018, the Committee has requested a report be brought back to 
identify what impact had been noted as a result of the strategy being rolled out.  The 
Committee expects any relevant performance data to be included in the report; along with 
any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 45



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

3rd March 2020 

Self-Evaluation Findings: 
Question 3: Leadership and 
Management 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and 
set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to the 
last of the key questions which is linked to Leadership and Management.  They will be 
required to scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with 
relevant supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Continued Development of 
the Town Centre and the 
Night-time Economy 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  Following an report received by Members in August 2019; the 
Committee requires a further report to be presented outlining the developments linked to 
the development of the Town Centre; and the Night-time Economy.  The report should 
contain status updates in relation to the ‘next steps’ identified when the topic was 
previously brought to scrutiny: 
 The status of the Merthyr After Dark strategy and the practical implications of delivering this on 

communities; 

 The status and membership of the Evening Economy Board; and the Board’s key priorities; and 

 What specifically the Council’s Regeneration and Public Protection Teams will be contributing to 
delivery of the strategy 

Town Centre Master Plan 
 
 
 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Members have requested a report be brought before the 
Committee to outline the key elements of the latest iteration of the Town Centre Master 
Plan.  Updates on key activities such as the Building Enhancement Scheme; developments 
linked to transport infrastructure should be included in the report. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

28th April 2020 
 
 
 
 

Third sector funding and 
support 

To be confirmed Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee acknowledged Governance committee are 
undertaking a piece of work around this issue.  However, Members of the Regeneration and 
Public Protection Committee Members wish to review and discuss the contribution third 
sector organisations make to the activities which are brought before them on a regular 
basis.  Discussions will focus on how funding cuts experienced over time have impacted on 
working arrangements; the level of services and activities being delivered generally and, in 
particular, how third sector funding and support has been impacted in relation to 
regeneration, cultural and public protection activities.  

P
age 46



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

 

 
Additional Topics for Review 

 

To be discussed Hoover Master Plan 
 
 

Public awareness around the proposed development of the Hoover site is growing and people are keen to find 
out more about what is being discussed, what impact any development would have on the people living in the 
areas around the Hoover site as well as to find out what role the Council will play in this.   

To be discussed Merthyr Tydfil’s Hidden 
History 

During a number of scrutiny sessions during 2018-19; Merthyr Tydfil’s Hidden History had been identified as an 
possible area of interest by the Committee Chair.  

To be discussed Violent Crime: Sexual 
Violence 

The Committee has requested a report on this topic, which would include both local and national data on sexual 
violence.  The report should outline the impact of sexual violence on citizens (i.e.) STIs; pregnancies; impact on 
mental health and offer basic detail on the support structure available for victims both at the time incidents 
occur and in the longer-term. 

To be discussed Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust The Committee seek an update on the activities being delivered by Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust with a specific 
focus on how these activities compliment or impact upon the services delivered by MTCBC. 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

28th April 2020 

Substance Misuse Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Paul Lewis / Ceri Ford (RCT 
CBC) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following a verbal update received by the Committee in October 
2019; members requested a written report be received focusing on the specific situation in 
relation to Merthyr Tydfil regarding substance misuse.  The Committee requests up-to-date 
information to be included; and that this information covers the use of both alcohol and 
illegal substances.  The report should also offer an outline of the key interventions being 
delivered and the impact of these. 
 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Town Centre Masterplan
	4 Continued Development of the Town Centre - Evening Economy
	5 Corporate Self-Evaluation - Question 3 (Leadership & Management)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	6 Work Programme 2019-20
	Appendix 1


